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Attorney General of Cahfoxma
GREGORY J, Savure

‘Supervising Deputy Attorney General |

Desmire I KRILOGG
Deputy Attormney General

| State Bar No, 126461

110 West "A”" Street, Suite 1100

San Diego, CA 92101 '

PO, Box 88266

San Diego, CA 92186.5266

Telephone: (619) 645-2996

Paosimile: (619) 6452061
Aﬁomay& Jor Gempk’mnam
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| In the Matter of the Acousation Against: - ﬁﬁ 3

DBA CABRILLO PARK ?HARMA{EY
2212 East 4th Street #102
Santa Ana, CA92705

i’harmacy Perm:t No, PHY Sﬁﬁﬁﬁ

GER’S HEALTHCARE ym&mf INC;,:‘ b

DBA YORBA PARK PHARMACY |
2501 E. Chaproan Blvd., N& 106

| f}rangég CA 92869 _
: _Pharma&y Pe&m;t ’Na PHY 45’?71

JAMESYIN&MNGGEE A R E )
220 Tall Dak e g e e G
}mne,CA%éO‘% IR St

SOONG OK CHANG

6901 East Ratgers I}rxve"', : foo

Anaheum H:IIS, (;‘A 92807

: Case Nos 4981 and 5328
- GEE'S HEALTE(}ARE PRARMACY, iNC., SRE

ms'r AMEN?)ED ACCUSATI(}N

" First Amended Accusation




ANH NGOC PHAN

11701 Steele Dr. B
Garden Grove, CA. 92840 |
Pharmacist License No. RPH 42197
Respondents,
Complainant ai‘_iege_é:
| PAMIES

1. Vargima Hemm (Coﬁwiamant) ’nrmgs thzs, Fnst Amended Accusation soleiy in h@r _

it Qfﬁclal c:apamty as the Execnhw Qfﬁc;er of i:}:w Baaxd of Phamac}'p Dﬁpmﬁﬂt of Q"’mﬁm&r

| 2, f O;:a or about Aprll 1,6 2{)(}2 t%li‘i‘« Boaxé of Pharmacy 1ssued ?ha?masy Pamnt Number

| :PH’Y 45771 1o Goe’s Healthoare Pharma{:y, Inc,, demg busmess as Yorba Park ?harmacy

{Respond&m Yorba Park Pharmacy) From Aprﬂ 16 2(}02 ’t}axough tha pr@sent Raspandent -

} ames (}es:s has beer the Pre&dent and ﬁﬂy percem owner mf Respondent Yorba Park Pharmwy
’}I"he Pharmacy P&rm:xt was in full :t‘f;}rce a:nfl affeat a,t all ﬁmas relavant to the shar ges brmight
helas.n and wﬂl expite on April 1 2015, unless mneweci e |

: -3:.  On or abom September 1 2@@9 ﬁhﬁ: Baarr:i :af ?hm'mac:y msued Phamnacjr }’emm _

| ENumbm PHY 50066 f;{:s ﬁ&e s Hﬁaaiﬂware Pharmacy, Iim domg busmsss as {Eabzﬂio ?Park

- 4; - On or about Augusi 26 1991 the 3’3{0&}:{1 of ?harmaey 1ssued Pharmamst Lic@;nsa

3 Nm*nbar RPH 44’7 96 to Ea‘mes Ymgﬂl\ilfmg Gee (Respondant Eamw Gee, ‘j The Phaxmams% Laceme

First Amended Accusation
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: f;; ;_f_:f'i{} Saﬁtitmﬂé‘{}(} 1 of‘th&Cmie states.__,_ f} T

| was infull fe}me and effect at ail times relevant to the c.hargas bmﬂght herem smd will axpm on |

Apml 3{} 2015, uni&ss renewed, _ _
-5 Onor atwut A;ugust 14» 195}2 the Tﬁnaxd of Ph&macy iSSﬂﬁd Pharmaclst I..msnses

| rNumbar RPH 45540 o Soong 0K Ghang m%spsmcimt Sz:;mlg Chang ) The }E’harmamst License

was ini full force and eﬁ‘act af atl times mlwant to-the e}xargas bmught herein and wﬁi expire on |

.6} 3 C}n Gr about Sep&ember 20, 1988, ﬂm Board of lemacy issued I’harmanist Iaoensfs

8| ;Nmnbsr RPH 421 9’? to Anh Ngoe Pizan (Rﬁspandsm Anh Phan.) The ?haxmacls!; Lmns& was
E 'ﬁﬁi fnree and affect atall i’:;mes rﬁleva:;*t 0 tha charges bmughi: hemm and will expire on May 31,

"2616 uniess mm:wed

L | J"Umsmeﬂm - b R
T}ns Fzrst’ Am&md&dz Aceuaaﬁon is m:;ughl: bﬂfora *the Bc&a:t‘d ‘E}f }?haxmacy {Bﬁm}), REE

| _-‘ s | Sw‘;wa z@«au of the Ceé& prowdes that the Board shfall adnnmataf and enforce both
: _@t};a Pharmaay Law [E‘us &; me Cecig, § 4&09 et seq ] ami thf:: i}’mfnnn (‘}emraﬂea Su‘bstaneﬁs .

' _Act [Heaith & &ai‘a*ty ‘C{}dﬁ § Hf)ﬁ}() ei; saq }

- _' _ 9 S&ciﬁ{m 43()@(&) af thea Codﬁ prmrz,ées ﬂaat every haense zssued by the Board may e g

: 'rm mpn*a‘fmn, ca;m} iation, fﬁrfm‘mm or :mpensmn csf H Enard«issuesi lmmse
by c)paramn of law or by order or decision of the board or 2 court of law, the
R F acernent of 4 Hosnse oncd refired status, or the voluntary surrender of 2 Jicenss bya
- lsenaee shall not daprzv@ s board of jmsdimo;:x {osonunence or; pmme& with any-
- Iavestigationof, or detion of rllsmplmary proceeding agamse th@ Ilmnsee or t@ :z‘f:nder
& ﬂﬁﬂiﬁlﬁn mw;aenﬁmg aor mr}kmg tiw license. - o

o . ST&TE?TGRY AND REIGMTQRY PROV{SI{}NS
: 11 Séeﬁén 4{)81 @‘E fha G@d@ sta;es inp@ri: nent ;:m’t

(a) Ai‘z mcards aof manufaomm axzci Gf szzle::a, acqmm’%m@ ot ﬂmpas;tmn G:E‘ dangemus

e 3 msp&etion by aa‘therzzed effiefsm of iha Emvn, ami shaﬂ be presewad fo; at lﬁasf

T Fist Axﬁ.eﬁdﬁed.ﬁceiééﬁaﬁ__
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tbresa yoars from the. date of making, A current inventory sha}}, be kept by every
menufacturer, wholesaler, pharmacy, veterinary food-animal drug retailer,
physician, dentist, podiateist, veterinarian, laboratory, clinic, hospital, institution,
or establishment holding a currently valid and unrevoked certificate, license,
perrit, registration, or exemption under Division 2 (commencing with Section
1200) of the Health and Safety Code or under Part 4 (commencing with Section
16000) of Division 9 of the Welfare and Institutions Cede whe maintains a stock
- of dangerous drugs or dangerous devices.

() The owner of“ﬁcer, and partner of any pharmaay, Whoiesaler or vatermary

food-animal drug retailer shall be jointly responsible, with the _

pharmacist-in-charge or mpresentatzvawin-charge for maa,mammg the records and
_ mventary described in this section,

12, Sectmn 4301 of the Cod& states in pemnent part;

T%m boa;rd shall take action agamst any holder of a license who is guﬂty of

o unpmfasswnai conduet or whose license has been procured by fraud or

misrepresentation or issued by mistake, Unpmfessmmai conduct shall meluda, hut is
not Ixmzted to, any of the failewmg _ S R _

L ({i} T%le clearly excessive :t’uzmsl‘nng of controtled substanees n wolam}n of

B subdmmn (a) of Sec;tmn 11153 of the Health dnd Safety Cnd&

- (;) The Vlﬁl&fi()ﬁ a‘f :my of thﬁ statutes of "tlrns state, or any other stata, or of the -
' Ummd States ragulatmg mntmiied snbstames and éangﬁmuﬁ dmgs _ -

(ﬁ) ‘Vz caiaﬁng or a%temptmg to me:)late, directly or mdzmaﬂy, or agsmnng inor -

' .'ah@ttmg the violation of or conspiring to violate &:]fjl?' provision or term of this chapter |

or of the applicable faderal and state laws and reg

gtions governing pharmacy, = -
: inciﬁdiﬁg reguiations astablzshed by the board or any ot}wr state or fe:dcral a:eguiamry o
-agemy \ R .

------

13 s@emmzls(c) ofiheCQdesmtes

‘I‘he pharmacxstwm-charge s%mli iﬁe respcmmble :Em a phas:macy 8 cﬂmplmnce

' w:n:h all state and f‘eciaral la.ws and re gulatmﬂs pmmmng to the practme, of phaﬂmay

0 Acts or omissions that mvoivs in ‘Wlloiﬁz orin pm“t the mappmpnate exercise of .
“his or her education, training, or experience as a pharmacist, whether or not the act
- or omission arises in the course of the practice of phatmacy or the ownership, -
i 'manag@ment ackmini &tmsmn, ot cperanon ofa phamacy or mther anmy hcansed by

' ' 1 _FirgtAﬁmnd@diAccus.a’eian
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the board.

Acts or ordssions that'mvdive, in whole or in part, the failure to consult
- appropriate patient, prescription, and other tecords pertaimng to the performanw of
- aﬁy phmmacy function. _

15, Section 4307(a) of the Code states that:

Any person who has been denied a lcense ot Whese license has been revoked
. or is under suspension, or who has failed to renew his or her license while it was
under suspension, or who has been 2 manager, administrator, owner member; offices,
~ director, associate, or partner of any partnership, corporation, firm, or association
whose application for a lcense has been denied or revoked, is under suspension or
has been placed on probation, and while acting as the manger, administrator, owner,

- menmber, officer, director, associate, or partner had knowledge or kmwmgly
participated in any conduet for which the license was denied, revoked, sus;;endeé; or
placed on probation, shall be prohibited from serving as a manger, admmmtrator, 3
owner, member, ;:sfficsr, director, assomate or partner (}f a ime:nsee; as fmi%c}ws '

(1) thre a pmbmaonary license is xssuec:i or Wherfs in emsﬁnw license is piaced

'.i_ye;ars. T

on, pmbatmn, this pmhxbman shall remmrz in ﬁffec‘t fora p&mﬁ m:t t{) exceed five SRR

@ thre; the Imense is denwc’i or revcked 1:}1@ pz ohzbrtmn shaﬂ ccanﬁnue unnl L
the lweﬁse ls issued or :remsta:ted ' o

“A pxescnptmn fcrr & contr{:ﬁed substaﬂce s’haI oniy be issued for a legitamata

.  medical “purpose by an individual practitioner acting in the usual course of his or her
. professional practice, The responsibility for the proper prescribing and dzspensmg of

ractifioner, but.a curmspcandmg

-confrolled substances is upon the preseribing

. responsibility rests with the pharmacist who f%ls the prescription. Exce

- authorized by this division, the following are not legal presctiptions: (1 an orc‘im

-+ purporting to be a preseription which is issued not in the usual course of . '

- professional tréatment or in legitimate and anthorized regearch; or (2) an {;r{ier far
- an addict or hebiteal uger of controlled substances, which is issued not in'the course
~of mrofossional trestment or as part. of an authorized narcotic treatment piogram, for

- the purpose of providing the user with controtled su‘nstames, sufﬁamm 1o keep hm -
- orher c:omfaﬁabi&bymmmmmg customaryﬁs& : L .

LELT I

17 Sezx’t‘mn l’ft}’? 3 ::‘:-:1‘ trﬂe 35 Gahfomla Caﬁa c)f Regulataons s’cates
_ Prior o cﬂnsultatmn as 8et forth in section 1707.2, & piwﬁnaczst shall mview a
: patzem*s drug therapy and medication fe:amzd before each préseription drugis 0 ¢
_ dehgiered Thereview shall mcludge ssreenmg fcr severe patennal r;%mg therapy
problems.

. 18 Sfmtm 1’714{!)) of mle 16 Cah:f‘onna chde: ca:{" Regulaﬁcms states

Each phamaacy lcensed by the baard shall mmnfam its faclhhes Spaca ﬁxmrezs
~and eqmpment so that dxugs are safe:ly amd properly pmpared mmntame:ci secum& _

5_'

- Fiest Amended Accusation
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- | .dangemus drugs handled ‘by every. imensea mumerate& in Section 4081 and 4332

S f':22 Sestx@n 1’761 of txtl@ 16 iﬁalzfomia Ccde @f Regniatmns staiesg o B

*: eﬁfémmem ef ‘iize »::asa

and distributed. The pharmacy shall be of sufficient size and unabstmmied area o
accommodate the safe practice of pharmacy, -

’ 719 Seaﬂaﬁ 1'? 15.6 of itle 186, Cahfaméa Code of R&giﬁaﬁﬁns states:

’j['ha owner shall repart 10 the Board within thirty (303 da”ys of dlscovery af an}f
loss of the controlied substances, including their amounts and mngt _ '

20 Smtmn 1716 of title 18, Cahfamia Code of Rﬁgulau{ms states:

Phas:mamsts shall net ﬁewate: from the reqmremen%s ofa pressmpﬁon excapt -
upon the prior consent of the preseriber ot to select the drug productin acccxrdame -
with Section 4073 of the Busmess and meesswns Code.

Nathing in this regulation is m‘c«enﬁed to ;&rohtbzt a pharmacxst ﬁrﬁm exerczsmg_ :
;ﬁmmmeniy aceepted phm:macgutmal practice in fhe cCotp m:lmimg ot dxspmsing ni‘ a
o ;Jrasmyﬁcm '

o “Cmeﬁt Inwm*@ry” as used in Seaﬁ{m 40%1 ancI 4332 of ﬁm 'Eusxmss a.nd
 Professions Code shall be consitered to include complete accountability forall -

S The mn‘tmllﬁd sa%stanﬁes nwentoms mqmred by Title 23 CFR S&-‘sc:;‘:mn 13 04
L shail be ava:.?a’i:}ia for mspeciwn upon request for at laas:t thm:a years S

{a) Nﬂ pharmamgt shall ew:;m;nmmd or dispense aﬁy pres«criptmn Whmh contams .
o any glgnificant srror, ofmission, iregularity, unocertainty, ambiguity or ‘ahteration. o
o 'Upi}j:i teveipt of any such pwssn?tmrﬁ the pharmagcist shall contact ﬂ’lﬁ prescmber fo .
L @b‘tam th& mfﬁrfﬁmm neecimﬁ to validate the pre:scmplicm :

ﬁh& hamsmg amt “tcs pa.y a &mn na‘i; ’m excae& ihe re:asonab‘le s:c)sts of the mv&sﬁgaﬁua smd

-Fi_r‘sfﬁ-_ﬁfﬁﬁﬂé&d Acousation |
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_ DRUGS
24, Dilendid is the brand name for hydromarphine, a Schedule If controlled substance
pursuan“l; o Health dnd Safsty Code sectlen 11054{‘[:;)(:]‘) and a clangsrous drug pu:rsuarrt to

_ Bﬂsmess and Professions Code sectlcn 4022,

: 25 . Ngrcg is tha bmnd name; for hydrecadcnefacetmmnophen, a Schedule i controiled

ts} I?&mmas& fmd meessmns Code se:nmon 4022, .

26. OQ@;; is fhtz brand nm‘m :Ec:r cxymnrphom hydmchiarrde, a Scheduie I omu’cmlled

to Busmass and Professmns Cnde’; se:ctiﬁn 4022

2’? thggcodggg isa S{Ehﬁd‘tﬂ.@ I aontro‘iied substama pursuant to Heafiﬂi a-:md Safaty Cnde

Sf;heﬁuia V cm;trolle& m%asiance pursaan% 1:0 Hea}th aﬁd Safety Cﬂde se{stzan 11 103 8(::){1) and 1s

a dangazcau.s drug ;nuxsuant i:o Busmess and meessmns Cmiﬁ se:etﬂ}n 4{}22

o Hc::alth anzi Safﬁty Coée s&c%:ton ilE}S’f @y and a dangerou& dmg pursuant ﬁo Busmass and

mewmc}ns Codez se:c.t;on 4_()2;2, o 3_ ERE
e _' |  FACTUAL ALLEGATZEONS | o
e 30}_; me Apmi 16 2002 Lhmugh ﬂuﬁ: pressnt, Res;mndﬁnt James Ge& Was *f:he Pharmac1sf:~»

| muCha:rge of ngpandant chrba Park '?hafmacy me Septembf:r 1 20{}9 ti'rreughﬂm present

Reszaondem }ames Gee was tha .'E’harmae:tst«m-()harge of Respondent Cabrﬁl@ }?ark Pharmacy

| E‘mm September 2@12 ﬂnoagh &‘azmary 2013 Respondent Soong ("Jhang was a siaff pha:fmamst at _: 8
B '-Respondam Ca'bnlim ?ark; thﬁaoy me June 21,2012 thmugh Novemm 19 2013, |
%

Rﬁ&pondent S{}Qﬁg {;‘hang Wis aisg a staﬁ pharmamst 4t Respondent Yorba Park Phatmacy

: Resmndant Yerba Iﬂ"ark Phamacy

sub stanca pursnant to Hcaith and Safety Code section 1 1056(&:}(5) and a c’iangamus dmg pursuant 5

;subsiame pursuam to H&aith and Safety Code section 1 1054([9)@) and a dangemus dmg pursuant ‘

29 m 1s the braml mme for aipmzmiam, Scheﬁuiﬁ v wntroﬂad substanse pursuant- o

"“ﬁ‘rom June 21, 2%) 12 ’chwugh November 19, 2013 Respendem Ath Phan wasa staff pharmaowt at|

- First Amended Accusation ] .
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- 31, Respondents Cabrillo Park Pharmacy, James Gee and Soong Chang filled

pxasmpﬂons for controlled substances which wete written by Dr. M.S, ﬁcom September 24, 2012

thro‘tlgh .Iarzuary 11,2013, Dr. M.8.’s address was listed on the preseriptions filled by

Respondents as being 53 miles away fmm Rﬁspandem Cabrzlio Paﬂ{ Pharmacy Responden’t

] Cabmilo Park ?harmacy was an average of 65 miles {one way) fmm thﬁ patients’ addresses fuswﬁ

on prescﬁptwns wntten by Dr, M S, Wha had a general practice with a seconéary practice in |

ped&amcs and did not Spsc:alxze in pain mamgemem Patients paid for the controlled snbstanoa :

prescﬂpﬁons in cash at Respenden‘t Cabrﬂia Park thay and did not se;ek reimbursement from _

an: insurancs compmy or govemmem agency Patients filled proscriptions for controlled
substances prefseribed by multiplfa physwiam durmg the same time frame at mulnple phamnac:zes

| 32 Respandems Yc:rba ?ark thmacy, J ames Geeg Soong Chaﬂg and filled prescnpno ns

I for controﬂed substam:es Whmh were written by Dr. M. S frsm June 21, 20122 ﬂxmugh November L A
| 19,2013, Dr, M 3 8 address was iistﬁd on ﬁlﬁ prescriptions ! ﬁiled by Respondents as %Jemg 5 l
-mzies awa.y fmm Respondant Y"erba Park Pharmacy Respcﬂéent Yﬁrba }?a:rk Pharmasy was an :

- averaga of 55 mxlss {one; Way‘} fmm ih& paﬁents address&s hsrieﬁi on prescriptioﬂs vmtten by Dr |

M S whe hadi a generai pmﬁ‘tmc W,Lti}. a saccmdary practice in pedgaﬁ‘ms and dzd nat spemahze in. )

pam managcm&nf; ?aufmts pmd for thﬁa %ntroiied ss,zbs‘tame pregcmptmns in cash at Respandf:mt

Ymba Park Phamnacy and did not seek rmm?mrsmm{ from an msmancex company or

guvmmnent agency Pat:lents ﬁlied preseﬁptmns for cer:;tm}le& su’%nstmmns presaribed by m%ﬂtip%

| fc::r Sﬁ:}{, age Wﬁlght renal or h@p&’ﬁk‘ﬁ ftmcﬁoﬁ race, daﬁgﬂcms past medmaucms used or a;ny othe:r .
' patwm telated facf:ox Nane ofthe “mmomc pmn pa’ewms” bsmg tmated "l::ry Dr. M. S warca - |

zeceiving a kmg ammg pain medlca:tmn to cxmm ol their bamhm pam C@rtam pmsmslpuong ’filled -

"8

~ First Amended Accusation |
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by Respondenﬁs Cabrillo Park Pharxhacy, james Gee and &cong Chang were not sigﬁe:d by Dr. |

‘ M S, and other prascmptwng were filled ’by them even though they were mgned bya physmmn '

wh{) was not the prescnbmg p‘nyswmn .

34, Addﬁmnaily, drivers pmked np the contmlied su‘bstanc:&s for multiple patmnts ﬁ"om
Respond@nts Cabrillo Park Pha:cmacy, Tames Gee and Soong Chang, 1ather than the paixents
themselves p1ck1ng up their presmptl(ms Resyonde:ms Cfabrﬂim Park }?iwmacy, James Gee and
Soong Chang chd not possess Wntten authorizanon aﬂomg tlms& dxzvazs to ym&c up ‘the

i aouﬁmlled $Ub$tancf: prescripuom for ;{Jatmms To fmmate the dmg zramaaﬁom wuh the

' pmcmg sheet f@r ct:vntrull@d sub stanc-es anci the telaphaﬂe nmn‘bcls of the ﬁrxvers to further

fac;hta;t;@ thesa drt.zg; tmns,a.ctmns “W:lth the éﬂver&

35 Raspondents Cabnﬂo ?a:rk Pharmacyj Yorba Parlc Fharmaay and ] arnes Gee placed

-ﬂfdmﬂ for mmp:wmusiy lazge amaunts af cg)m:ro}lad snhstance& W;th theﬂ dmg thlegalers

thﬁ ]I)fug Enforcammt Admmzstzamn &nd the Baarci

36 R@Sp(mdemﬂ Cabz:ﬂlo ?ml«: Phaxmacy, Yorba }?aﬂ: I’haymaay, J ames Gea Soong

' 'Ghang and Anh Phan did not follﬁw pmpar ;Jrocedu;res fOl venfymg if a pmscm;)twn ;f’or a-

contmlied substance was wrxtien fer a 1eg:rtima‘ta ms&ml purpose I{:ndaeé Raspmden‘ts Cabmlio _

Park: Pharmacy, Yorba Park Pharmacy, I ames Ge& Sf}eng Chaﬂg aﬁd Anh Ph&m dispense:d

Q’f Ld&ntity ﬂzeﬁ Aﬁd Respmndems fumghmgs (}f controlleci substames was Eugher thzm

nmcrhbomng pha:macws dung the same t:me ﬁmﬁ

First-Amended Accusation
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37, Onor a‘oom‘, Fe‘bmary 6, 2014, Dr, .M.S‘ was arrasted for viélaﬁng Business and -

_meessions Code section 2052(15), Health and Safety Code section 11353(a), 11353(c) and 11354,
Onor abeut February 10,2014,a ieiony C@mplmnt was filed agamst }i)r M8, for vzolaﬁmg those
code ssc{mnsj amﬂng eﬁler vmiatmns -

o 38:. Raspondenta Cabn}k: Park Pharmaay and I ames Cee ajiso had discrepancies in their
drug mvan’mry From June 2012 thrngh January 2{313 Respondmts Cabrlllo Park thaey and
B! amas G*ee suffemd the- feiiowmg lnsse:s. of oﬁnu“ﬂiimd substances 734 tablets of - _
hydrocmdomfAPM mmg/ S?.Smg and 20 tablets of hy&rumorphom 4mg, They dld not repott |
:*thﬁse% lﬂssas to the: Baard

mamtam cempiets msords af acqmsmon fnr thos& wntroﬂed substances

41’] R&sponden"is Yorba Pairk Pizarmaoy and J’ ames Gee alsc; hac‘i dxscmpanmes in thelr

] 'drug mv&ntory Ffom T auuAry 31, 2{}13 throug‘h }Decembﬁr 3,2013, Respondents Yﬁrba Park

_Piamacy and 3 ames Cee suﬁemd ﬂl@ :fﬂjlowmg iosses of conf:rolied mbstanceﬁ 6 332 iabiets af

Tosses t0 tha Boa:rd mﬁi prompted to dx:) 3{: by 8 Board mspec’tmr
- FIRST CAUSE________________; : DISCXP 1 ,E

' ':su%stanws alprazoiam oxycodona hyd:mcodcnaﬁAPAP and hydrommrphone, and suﬁfered h}sses |

A m thazr mvenﬁory <:;f alplazalam, oxyecdone hydxoco&omf‘APAP h\?ﬂml"ﬁm’?’hﬂm a,nd

e

F&sﬁﬁm@iﬂe&.;ﬁcmsaﬁm . |
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SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(F«ziium to Repart Drug Losses agamst Respendenta '
o Y&rba Park I‘hax macy, Cabrillo Park Pharmacy and James Gee)
| 42 Respenciants Cabrillo Park Pharmacy, Yorba Park Phannacy and J ame& Gee are
subjaci' to dlsolpimary action uncier Code section 4301(0), for moianng itle 16, California Code
ef Regulaticms section 1715 6, in that Cabrillo Park Pharmac:y and James Gee did not report the

losses of hydrocodone/ﬁPAP aud hydmmorphone and Yorba Park Phannaay aml James Gee did

{f pot raport the losses of zalh:)mz{ﬁam3 exyagdene hydrsmdene/APAP and promethazine with

codﬁme: te the Boaré as set forth in paragfaphs 30 ihrough 40 a‘bqves whmh gre mcm:porated

{Fai!u:re fa ?rowde Adequate Security fnr Contrnllad Substance
against I%es;mndents Yarfm Park Pharmacy, Ca‘i:rﬂ’ln Park Pharmacy a;a{i J&mes Gee)

43 Respcnd&nts Cabnllo Par}{ ]?harmacy, Yorba Park thacy and James Goe are
snb; et::t m dmcapﬁmary B.a‘tmn uném‘ Code se:a:tmn 4301(0} for vml&fmg ntie 16, Ciahfomxa Code

' af Reglﬂaﬁons, sec*tau:m 1714(‘?}),, in that Cahmllo Pa:fk ?harmacy and 3' amas (}ea chd ot pmwde | i

adﬁquate fsecumy for hydrocadanem}%f and hydrommrphone ami Yorba Pmk ?harma;:y and

'3 ames Gae did n@t pmwc%@ adequata saz;ur;ty fm- aipramiam, xymdone, hydrowcionefAPA? arzd
.;::romethazma mth codmnfz, ag Sezt farih in pﬁragraphs 30 i:hsoagh 40 aba}va, whwh are :

mcorpomtaci h@zem b}f f@f@fenee iy

: :'undar Cod& sec%:mn 43{}1{0) :Ear v:lalatmg Coda s:aetmn 4081(&}, in f}aﬁt thay fazled ‘f:o m&mtam aﬂ

4 ﬁm mmrds of aeqmsm@n fm ‘thﬁ cﬂn‘f:rollad m‘bstancess, alpramlam ngﬁ and ox.ycodo:ne: S(Img, as|

1
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§IFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
| _ (1« aﬂmg to Comply w1th Correspondmg Respons:bﬂlty
for Legltxmai*e Controlied Substanee I’rescripnons agamst Respanéents)

452 Res;;l Qnd&nts are subject to émclplmary asetion uxxder Cod& section 4301(j), for

| _ Vm]atmg Heaith azxd Safety Ciﬁdﬁ seamm 11153(&}, in that they fmle;d to comply with thezr

il cerrespondmg respanmbz ity to ensure that controlled sabstances were dlspensad for & iegmmata

medwai puzpase when R@sponﬁeﬁtﬁ furmshed pxesar;.pﬁons for controlled substances even though

' “red ﬂags” Wﬂrﬁ present mématmg ﬁaose prescnptmns were not IESSu(’;d fora Iegmmata medmal

pmpose, as set forth in pmagraphs 30 thmngh 4% above, Wh:@ch are meorporatcd hetein by

refereme

(D;span&mg C{mﬂ ;}llvd Su‘i}sﬁance Prescmptmns ”With Significant Errors, {}mmsians, R

Irregﬂlﬂriﬁes, Umertamfies, Ambxgmﬂ&s or Aitemtmns ag;amst Respondents}

2 R |
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“EQMHTK CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Faxiure to Revmw Patxents’ Medmatmn Record Before Prescriptmn Drugs I)eiwered
| ugamsf Resi}ondents)
48. Re&pendents are S‘ilbjﬂci' to dxsmpimax‘y action under Code section 4301(0) for -
vwi&tmg tlﬂe 16 Cahf{smxa Code of ’{{cgulatlens, s&ctlrm 17073, in that they dispensed .

pxe:smpﬁons for érugsg without ) review of patzents medmataon records befcfre each preﬁcnptzen

“diug Was dehvetcd Such a review would bave tevealed numerous’ md flags,” as se’c forthin

paragraphs 30 thmugh Al abave, which are 1ncerpamted hes:em ’by reference.

H CA’E}SE_ ,{}R DISCIPLINE

{})xspensmg Cﬁntroiif.d Suhstances with Vamafmns from ‘.i’rescriptiom against
' 5 e S Respondents Gabrillo Park }’harmacy smd .}'ames Gee)

49 Respondenfs C abrzllo ?ark Pharmax:y ami James Gee are sum ect to dzsaipimary actlon

muder Code secﬁﬁn 4301(@) fm: vmlatmg titie 16 Qahfomla Cnde of Regulatmm geetxgn 1’?16 m |

5 E:Elai thay dmpens&ci coﬁtm}im substazms which deviated fmm the rcqmremems 0f the

in paragmphs 30 th.rough 40, meh aze mcerpemt&d he;ram by refarence
' T‘ENTH C : IS¥ F' RDISCILPLINE

5{} Respmdents James (}ee, Soeng Chang and Anh?han are sub; emt ta dmmphnary

actzun undar {L'ode ssctxor.i 43@ i{o)! for vmlafmg Busmess anci ?rofessmns Cn&e sectmn 43{}6 S (a) :' :

and {b‘) in that thay faﬂetd ta exercis@ ar 1mpiement his or her best pr(}fessmnal jucigm&nt or

:carraspondmg mspﬂnsxbﬁ ity when dxspﬂnsmg contmiled s&hstances, ay sa’t forth in paxagr&phs 30

'thmugh 46 a%:mre,, whmh am mcorpx}mted herem by refmancﬁa

13
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g;LEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Uﬁpréfessiona} Conduct against Respandents)

5] 3 Rﬁspnndents are snbject fo dzsmplmary actmn under Code sectzon 43@1 for
unprofessmnal conduei in that they engagsd in the activities described in paragraphs 30 thmugh
40 above, whmh are mmrporated hm'em by referencze

o _ OTHER MATTERS | |
52. Pursuant to C,Qde mctmn 430‘? if discipline is imposed on Pharmacy Perxmt
Numba;:s PH.Y 45771 Jssued to Gee’s Healthcare Pharmaey, Inc. ciomg busmese as Yz)rba Park
}’hazmacy and PHY 5606& 1ssusci to Gse 8 Healthcare Fhamgcy, Im  doing busmess as Cabrﬂio
Park Pharmacy, Gee’ s Healihcare Pharmacy, Inc. domg busmess as Yoxba Park Pharmacy and '

Cabrﬁlo }?’ar}z Pharmacy shaﬂ be pr i)hfblted &om servmg asa manager, aémuustratsr awner |

;Park Phama@y Wh;ie James Ymgnl‘v{{mg Gee has been an ofﬁcer and oWner and had kmwle:dga '

i of or kmamngly pamcipatﬁd in any c«:}nciuct for Whmh the hcengee was dlsciplmad James Ymg~

- 3_se:rv1ng a8 a maaagm,,, admmmtratar, mmer, member, Qfﬁcer, dmctor, a.ssocxate o:r pafmar of a

1 Ticensee for ﬁve yeats if I’haimamst License Number RPH 44796 1s placed on proba;t:ton or until

E’harmamst Lmense Number RPH 44’? 96 is rﬁ:mstaied ifitis revcﬁced

First Amiéﬁﬁad Accusation '
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55, TQ &etermma the ﬁﬁgrﬁ& oi dzsmplfﬁm ifany, to be :mpased on Raspandanw

- C@mplamt alleges*

4. (}n Fabmary 22, :20 12, the Baarcl issued Cs,tatm number CI2011 49857

ppaingt 'Resp émiam {:abiillﬁ Park-thany for vzcslatiﬁg Eu&m@ss and ?wfwm'{ms Coda section
| 4126. ﬁ(a)(‘fi} for impmpeﬂy ﬁlrmshmg dmgs toa Whﬁléﬁalef The Board 1ssued & ﬁn& Whmh

Raspﬁndant pmd _ _ _ _
b, On F@bmmy za 2012, the. Bam*d issued a Letter cfAtimamsI:mzmt to

”Raspander;t I ames ﬁ&@ fﬁr vmiai’ing Bus;ness and mea&smns Code section 4125 5(&)(4) for -

: ,'éiaalthc&re Fhmm&gy, Inc d@mg busimss ag Q&’bnilo Park Pharmasy} o

o :S;: ' R&vakmgersus;mndmg Pharmaezsi Lwense Kmﬁhar RJ?H %4‘796 15511&@1 to }ames

" First Amendod Aceuiation |
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Qfﬁcér, director, assoctate, of palfmér of  Hicensee for five years if Pharmacy Permit Numberi
PRY 45771 and PHY 50066 are placed on probation or until Pharmacy Permit Numbers PHY |
45771 and PHY 50066 are roinstated if Pharmacy Permit Numbers 45771 and 5006 issued to
Ge»e_s’s Healtheare P.h'armawy,' In#. doing business as Cabrillo Park Pﬁarmaoy' and Yorba Park
Pharmacy are revoked;

7 Proh:fbmng James ’Y’ing-«Mmg Gw from serving as a mauager, admxmsu-ator OWner, :
miember, f)fﬁeer, dn‘mmr} assoamte, or paxtmr of a licenses for five years if Pharmacy Permit
Numbers PHY 457’?1 and PHY 5(}{)66 are placed on pmbatwn or until Pharmacy Permit
Numbsrs PHY 45“}"7 1 and PHY 50 {}66 are xemstateé if Pharmacy Perxmt Numbers 45771 and

'5066 issued to Gse 8 Hesalthcare ?hatmacy, Inc. &omg busmess as C‘abnllc Park Phazmaey and

- “Yor‘oa Park thmacy ate revoked

& : Prohlbitmg Iames Ying~Mzng Gee fmm sewmg as amanager admamstramr owner, o

m@mbm ():Eﬁcer ﬁirectmr, asmma% o1 paﬂml af a lmnsee for. fiva ymrs if Phamacmt Lmense

: Nmmbar RPH 44796 is placed cm pm%;auon or uxmi Phamamsi Lwtmse ‘Num}wr RPH 44796 1 :13 '

mmstated if Pbaxmamst Lmense Numbﬁr RPH 44796 1ssued to J ames 'Ymg-—Mmg Gﬁ;e is

f mf@ked

| _Phaxmacy, O;fdexmg Gee 3 Heal‘thoam Pharmacy, Im d{)mg busmss as Y@rba ?ark ?harmacy

Jar ames Ymg-Mmg Gee.& Smang QK C“:hang and Anh Ngoc Phan to pay the Board of ?harmaey the

' reasenabla costs of the mvestxga,u{m and @nfomement of *this case pu:rsuant to Busmess and

| Profﬁssmns Code sﬁctmn 125 3

1(} Ta%:mg mch c;”ﬁh@r ar:d further acrtmn as de&med mwssary Emd pmpar

/24/

E)A’I‘EI)
Bomct ofPharrﬁaey S
Department of Consumer Affaars
. - State of Californin -
U D P S - Complainani
SD2013706220/71001669.dogx o
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KAMALA D. HARRIS
Attorney General of California
LmpA K. SCHNEIDER
Supervising Deputy Attorney Géneral
DESIREE 1. KELLOGG
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No, 126461
110 West "A" Street, Suite 1100
San Diego, CA 92101
P.O. Box 85266
San Diego, CA 92186-5266
Telephone: (619) 645-2996
Facsimile: (619) 645-2061
Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against:

GEE’S HEALTHCARE PHARMACY, INC.,
DBA CABRILLO PARK PHARMACY

2212 East 4th Street #102

Santa Ana, CA 92705

Pharmacy Permit No. PHY 50066
SOONG OK CHANG

6901 East Rutgers Drive

Anaheim Hills, CA 92807
Pharmacist License No. RPH 45540
JAMES YING-MING GEE

220 Tall Oak

Irvine, CA 92603

Pharmacist License No. RPH 44796

Case No. 4981

ACCUSATION

Respondents.
Complainant alleges:
PARTIES
1. Virginia Herold (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her official capacity

as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs.

1
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2. On or about September 1, 2009, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacy Permit
Number PHY 50066 to Gee’s Healthcare Pharmacy, Inc., doing business as Cabrillo Park
Pharmacy (Respondent Cabrillo Park Pharmacy). The Pharmacy Permit was in full force and
effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will expire on September 1, 2015,
unless renewed.

3. Onorabout August 14, 1992, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacist License
Number RPH 45540 to Soong OK Chang (Respondent Soong Chang.) The Pharmacist License
was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will expire on
September 30, 2015, unless renewed.

4. On or about August 26, 1991, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacist License' :
Number RPH 44796 to James Ying-Ming Gee (Respondent James Gee.) The Pharmacist License
was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will expire on
April 30, 2015, unless renewed.

JURISDICTION

5. This Accusation is brought before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), Department of
Consumer Affairs, under the authority of the following laws. All section references are to the
Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated.

6.  Section 4011 of the Code provides that the Board shall administer and enforce both
the Pharmacy Law [Bus. & Prof.-Code, § 4000 et seq.] and the Uniform Controlled Substances
Act [Health & Safety Code, § 11000 et seq_].

7. Section 4300(a) of the Code provides that every license issued by the Board may be
suspended or revoked.

8. Section 4300.1 of the Code states:

The expiration, cancellation, forfeiture, or suspension of a board-issued license
by operation of law or by order or decision of the board or a court of law, the
placement of a license on a retired status, or the voluntary surrender of a license by a
licensee shall not deprive the board of jurisdiction to commence or proceed with any
investigation of, or action or disciplinary proceeding against, the licensee or to render
a decision suspending or revoking the license.
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STATUTORY AND REGULATORY PROVISIONS

9.  Section 4081 of the Code states in pertinent part:

(a) All records of manufacture and of sale, acquisition, or disposition of dangerous
drugs or dangerous devices shall be at all times during business hours open to
inspection by authorized officers of the law, and shall be preserved for at least
three years from the date of making. A current inventory shall be kept by every
manufacturer, wholesaler, pharmacy, veterinary food-animal drug retailer,
physician, dentist, podiatrist, veterinarian, laboratory, clinic, hospital, institution,
or establishment holding a currently valid and unrevoked certificate, license,
permit, registration, or exemption under Division 2 (commencing with Section
1200) of the Health and Safety Code or under Part 4 (commencing with Section
16000) of Division 9 of the Welfare and Institutions Code who maintains a stock
of dangerous drugs or dangerous devices.

(b) The owner, officer, and partner of any pharmacy, wholesaler, or veterinary
food-animal drug retailer shall be jointly responsible, with the
pharmacist-in-charge or representative-in-charge, for maintaining the records and
inventory described in this section.

10.  Section 4301 of the Code states in pertinent part:

The board shall take action against any holder of a license who is guilty of
unprofessional conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or
misrepresentation or issued by mistake. Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is
not limited to, any of the following;:

(§) The violation of any of the statutes of this state, or any other state, or of the
United States regulating controlled substances and dangerous drugs....

(o) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting in or
abetting the violation of or conspiring to violate any provision or term of this chapter
or of the applicable federal and state laws and regulations governing pharmacy,
including regulations established by the board or any other state or federal regulatory
agency.

11.  Section 4113(c) of the Code states:

The pharmacist-in-charge shall be responsible for a pharmacy’s compliance
with all state and federal laws and regulations pertaining to the practice of pharmacy.

12, Section 4306.5 of the Code states, in pertinent part:

Unprofessional conduct for a pharmacist may include any of the following:

Accusation
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Acts or omissions that involve, in whole or in part, the inappropriate exercise of
his or her education, training, or experience as a pharmacist, whether or not the act
or omission arises in the course of the practice of pharmacy or the ownership,
management, administration, or operation of a pharmacy or other entity licensed by
the board.

Acts or omissions that involve, in whole or in part, the failure to consult
appropriate patient, prescription, and other records pertaining to the performance of
any pharmacy function,

13.  Health and Safety Code section 11153(a) states:

A prescription for a controlled substance shall only be issued for a legitimate
medical purpose by an individual practitioner acting in the usual course of his or her
professional practice. The responsibility for the proper prescribing and dispensing of
controlled substances is upon the prescribing practitioner, but a corresponding
responsibility rests with the pharmacist who fills the prescription. Except as
authorized by this division, the following are not legal prescriptions: (1) an order
purporting to be a prescription which is issued not in the usual course of
professional treatment or in legitimate and authorized research; or (2) an order for an
addict or habitual user of controlled substances, which is issued not in the course of
professional treatment or as part of an authorized narcotic treatment program, for the
purpose of providing the user with controlled substances, sufficient to keep him or
her comfortable by maintaining customary use.

14, Section 1707.3 of title 16, California Code of Regulations states:

Prior to consultation as set forth in section 1707.2, a pharmacist shall review a
patient’s drug therapy and medication record before each prescription drug is
delivered. The review shall include screening for severe potential drug therapy
problems.

15. Section 1714(b) of title 16, California Code of Regulations states:;

Each pharmacy licensed by the board shall maintain its facilities, space, fixtures,
and equipment so that drugs are safely and properly prepared, maintained, secured
and distributed. The pharmacy shall be of sufficient size and unobstructed area to
accommodate the safe practice of pharmacy.

16. Section 1715.6 of title 16, California Code of Regulations states:

The owner shall report to the Board within thirty (30) days of discovery of any
loss of the controlled substances, including their amounts and strengths.

17. Section 1716 of'title 16, California Code of Regulations states:

Pharmacists shall not deviate from the requirements of a prescription except
upon the prior consent of the prescriber or to select the drug product in accordance -
with Section 4073 of the Business and Professions Code.

Nothing in this regulation is intended to prohibit a pharmacist from exercising

4
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commonly accepted pharmaceutical practice in the compounding or dispensing of a
prescription.

18. Section 1718 of title 16, California Code of Regulations states:

“Current Inventory” as used in Section 4081 and 4332 of the Business and
Professions Code shall be considered to include complete accountability for all
dangerous drugs handled by every licensee enumerated in Section 4081 and 4332.

The controlled substances inventories required by Title 21, CFR, Section 1304
shall be available for inspection upon request for at least three years.

19. Section 1761 oftitle 16, California Code of Regulations states:

() No pharmacist shall compound or dispense any prescription which contains
any significant error, omission, irregularity, uncertainty, ambiguity or alteration.
Upon receipt of any such prescription, the pharmacist shall contact the prescriber to
obtain the information needed to validate the prescription.

(b) Even after conferring with the prescriber, a pharmacist shall not compound
or dispense a controlled substance prescription where the pharmacist knows or has

objective reason to know that said prescription was not issued for a legitimate
medical purpose.

COST RECOVERY

20. Section 125.3 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that the Board may request the
administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or violations of
the licensing act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and
enforcement of the case.

DRUGS

21. Dilaudid is the brand name for hydromorphine, a Schedule II controlled substance
pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 11054(b)(J) and a dangerous drug pursuant to
Business and Professions Code section 4022,

22. Norco is the brand name for hydroco_done/acetaminophen, a Schedule III controlled
substancé pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 11056(e)(5) and a dangerous drug pursuant
to Business and Professions Code section 4022. _

23. QOpana is the brand name for oxymorphone hydrochloride, a Schedule II controlled
substance pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 11054(b)(N) and a dangerous drug pursuant

to Business and Professions Code section 4022.
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24. Oxycodone is a Schedule II controlled substance pursuant to Health and Safety Code
section 11054(b)(M) and a dangerous drug pursuant to Business and Professions Code section
4022.

25, Xanax is the brand name for alprazolam, a Schedule IV controlled substance pursuant
to Health and Safety Code section 11057(d)(1) and a dangerous drug pursuant to Business and
Professions Code section 4022,

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

26. From September 1, 2009 through the present, Respondent James Gee was the
Pharmacist-in-Charge of Respondent Cabrillo Park Pharmacy. From September 2012 through
January 2013, Respondent Soong Chang was a staff pharmacist at Respondent Cabrillo Park
Pharmacy.

27. Respondents filled prescriptions for controlled substances which were written by Dr.
M.S. from September 24, 2012 through January 11, 2013. Dr. M.S.’s address was listed on the
prescriptions filled by Respondents as being 53 miles away from Respondent Cabrillo Park
Pharmacy. Respondent Cabrillo Park Pharmacy was an average of 65 miles (one way) from the
patients’ addresses listed on prescriptions written by Dr, M.S. who had a general practice with a
secondary practice in pediatrics and did not spec’;alize in pain management. Patients paid for the
controlled substance prescriptions in cash at Respondent Cabrillo Park Pharmacy and did not seek
reimbursement from an insurance company or government agency.

28, Dr. M.S.’s prescriptions for controlled substances were written in an identical fashion
for multiple patients as follows: (1) hydrocodone/APAP 10/325, with directions to take 1-2 tablets
three times a day in a quantity of 90-100; (2) alprazolam 2 mg with directions to take 1 tablet
three times a day in a quantity of 90; and (3) oxycodone 30mg with directions to take 1 tablet
three times a day in a quantity of 90. Certain prescriptions filled by Respondents were not signed
by Dr. M.S. and other prescriptions were filled by Respondents even though they were signed by a
physician who was not the prescribing physician.

29. Additionally, drivers picked up the controlled substances for multiple patients from

Respondents, rather than the patients themselves picking up their prescriptions. Respondents did

6
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not possess written authorization allowing those drivers to pick up the controlled substance
prescriptions for multiple patients. To facilitate the drug transactions with the drivers,
Respondents kept envelopes which contained prescriptions for controlled substances to be filled,
next to the cash register. Respondents telephoned the drivers to initiate a pick up when they had
filled all the multiple prescriptions for controlled substances. In that same drawer, Respondents
kept a pricing sheet for controlled substances and the telephone numbers of the drivers to further
facilitate these drug transactions with the drivers,

30. Respondents Cabrillo Park Pharmacy and James Gee placed orders for suspiciously
large amounts of controlled substances with their drug wholesaler. Notwithstanding those orders,
Respondents did not dispense all the prescriptions for controlled substances in a timely manner as
prescribed, because théy sought to avoid charges that they were excessively prescribing controlled
substances from the Drug Enforcement Administration and the Board.

31. Respondents did not follow proper procedures for verifying if a prescription for a
controlled substance was written for a legitimate medical purpose. Indeed, Respondents
dispensed prescriptions to patients who had lost their wallets or social security cards and had been
victims of identity theft. And, Respondent’s furnishings of controlled substances was higher than
neighboring pharmacies during the same time frame.

32. Respondents also had discrepancies in their drug inventory. From June 2012 through
January 2013, Respondents Cabrillo Park Pharmacy and James Gee suffered the following losses
of controlled substances: 734 tablets of hydrocodone/APAP 10mg/325mg and 20 tablets of
hydromorphone 4mg. They did not report those losses to the Board.

33. Respondents Cabrillo Park Pharmacy and James Gee’s inveﬁtory contained overages
of 165 tablets of alprazolam 2mg and 152 tablets of oxycodone 30mg. Therefore, they did not

maintain complete records of acquisition for those controlled substances.
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FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Maintain Current Inventory of Controlled Substance against Respondents
Cabrillo Park Pharmacy and James Gee)

34.  Respondents Cabrillo Park Pharmacy and James Gee are subject to disciplinary action
under Code section 4301(0), for violating title 16, California Code of Regulations, section 1718,
in that they did not maintain a current inventory of controlled substances, alprazolam, oxycodone,
hydrocodone/APAP and hydromorphone, and suffered losses in their inventory of
hydrocodone/APAP and hydromorphone, as set forth in paragraphs 26 through 33 above, which
are incorporated herein by reference.

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Report Drug Losses against Respondents
Cabrillo Park Pharmacy and James Gee)

35.  Respondents Cabrillo Park Pharmacy and James Gee are subject to disciplinary action
under Code section 4301(0), for violating title 16, California Code of Regulations, section 1715.6,
in that they did not report the losses of controlled substances, hydrocodone/APAP and
hydromorphone to the Board, as set forth in paragraphs 26 through 33 above, which are
incorporated herein by reference.

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Provide Adequate Security for Controlled Substance
against Respondents Cabrillo Park Pharmacy and James Gee)

36. Respondents Cabrillo Park Pharmacy and James Gee are subject to disciplinary action
under Code section 4301(0), for violating title 16, California Code of Regulations, section
1714(b), in that they did not provide adequate security for controlled substances,
hydrocodone/APAP and hydromorphone, as set forth in paragraphs 26 through 33 above, which

are incorporated herein by reference.
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FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Maintain Records of Acquisition)

37. . Respondents Ca‘brillo Park Pharmacy and James Gee are subject to disciplinary action
under Code sections 4301(0), for violating Code section 4081(a), in that they failed to maintain all
the records of acquisition for the controlled substances, alprazolam 2mg and oxycodone 30mg, as
set forth in paragraphs 26 through 33, which are incorporated herein by reference.

FIFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failing to Comply with Corresponding Responsibility
for Legitimate Controlled Substance Prescriptions against Respondents)

38. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under Code section 4301(3), for
violating Health and Safety Code section 11153(a), in that they failed to comply with their
corresponding responsibility to ensure that controlled substances were dispensed for a legitimate
medical purpose when Respondents furnished prescriptions for controlled substances even though
“red flags” were present, indicating those prescriptions were not issued for a legitimate medical
purpose, as set forth in paragraphs 26 through 33 above, which are incorporated herein by

reference.

SIXTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Dispensing Controlled Substance Prescriptions with Significant Errors, Omissions,
Irregularities, Uncertainties, Ambiguities or Alterations against Respondents)

39. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under Code section 4301(o), for
violating title 16, California Code of Regulations, sections 1761(a) and (b) in that they dispensed
prescriptions for controlled substances, which contained significant errors, omissions,
irregularities, uncertainties, ambiguities or alteraﬁons, as set forth in paragraphs 26 through 33

above, which are incorporated herein by reference.
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SEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Review Patients’ Medication Record Before Prescription Drugs Delivered
against Respondents)

40. Respondents are subject to disciplinéry action under Code section 4301(o), for
violating title 16, California Code of Regulations, section 1707.3, in that they dispensed
prescriptions for drugs, without review of patients’ medication records before each prescription
drug was delivered. Such a review would have revealed numerous “red flags,” as set forth in
paragraphs 26 through 33 above, which are incorporated herein by reference.

EIGHTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Dispensing Controlled Substances with Variations from Prescriptions against
Respondents Cabrillo Park Pharmacy and James Gee)

41. Respondents Cabrillo Park Pharmacy and James Gee are subject to disciplinary action
under Code section 4301(0) for violating title 16, California Code of Regulations, section 1716, in
that they dispensed controlled substances which deviated from the requirements of the
prescriptions without the prior consent of the prescribers and dispensed controlled substances
when the prescriptions were prescribed by Dr. ML.S. but signed by another physician, as set forth
in paragraphs 26 through 33, which are incorporated herein by reference.

NINTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Exercise or Implement Best Professional Judgment or Corresponding
Responsibility when Dispensing Controlled Substances
against Respondents James Gee and Soong Chang)

42, Respondents James Gee and Soong Chang are subject to disciplinary action under
Code section 4301(0), for violating Business and Professions Code section 4306.5(a) and (b), in
that they failed to exercise or implement his or her best professional judgment or corresponding
responsibility when dispensing controlled substances, as set forth in paragraphs 26 through 33

above, which are incorporated herein by reference.
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TENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Unprofessional Conduct against Respondents James Gee and Soong Chang)
43. Respondents James Gee and Soong Chang are subject to disciplinary action under
Code section 4301 for unprofessional conduct in that they engaged in the activities described in
paragraphs 26 through 33 above, which are incorporated herein by reference.
DISCIPLINARY CONSIDERATIONS
44. To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondents,
Complainant alleges:

a. On February 22, 2012, the Board issued Citation number CI 2011 49857 against
Respondent Cabrillo Park Pharmacy for violating Business and Professions Code section
4126.5(a)(4) for improperly furnishing drugs to a wholesaler, The Board issued a fine which
Respondent paid.

b. On February 23, 2012, the Board issued a Letter of Admonishment to
Respondent James Gee for violating Business and Professions Code section 4126.5(a)(4) for
improperly furnishing drugs to a wholesaler.

c.  OnMarch 10, 1999, the Board issued Citation Number CI 1996 14411 against
Soong Chang for violating title 16, California Code of Regulations, section 1707.2 for failing to
provide oral consultation to a patient. The Board issued a fine which Respondent paid.

PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,
and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision:

1. Revoking or suspending Pharmacy Permit Number PHY 50066, issued to Gee’s
Healthcare Pharmacy, Inc., doing business as Cabrillo Park Pharmacy;

2.  Revoking or suspending Pharmacist License Number RPH 45540, issued to Soong
OK Chang;

3. Revoking or suspending Pharmacist License Number RPH 44796, issued to James

Ying-Ming Gee;
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4. Ordering Gee’s Healthcare Pharmacy, Inc., doing business as Cabrillo Park Pharmacy,
Soong OK Chang and James Ying-Ming Gee to pay the Board of Pharmacy the reasonable costs
of the investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and Professions Code
section 125.3;

5. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper.

DATED: / (9‘/9{/ 3/ ( )M ,u_e-..—

VIRGINIA HEROLD

Executi fficer

Board of Pharmacy

Department of Consumer Affairs
State of California

Complainant

SD2013706220
70817499.doc
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